ADMINISTRATIVE MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT
This Administrative Memorandum of Agreement ("Agreement") is entered into by and
between the United States Department of Justice, Drug Enforcement Administration ("DEA")
and McKesson Corporation ("McKesson") (each a "Party" and collectively the "Parties").

APPLICABILITY
This Agreement shall be applicable to McKesson and any facility owned or operated by
McKesson US Pharmaceutical registered, or who may become registered, with DEA to
distribute, or otherwise handle controlled substances. The current list of applicable facilities is
identified in Appendix A.
BACKGROUND
1.
McKesson is registered with DEA at the facilities listed in Appendix A as distributors of
Schedule II-Y controlled substances under provisions ofthe Comprehensive Drug Abuse
Prevention and Control Act of 1970, 21 U.S.C. § 801 et seq., ("CSA" or "the Act"). See
Appendix A. Collectively, the distribution centers listed in Appendix A and the former
Landover, Maryland distribution center are referred to herein as the "McKesson Distribution
Centers."
2.
In May 2008, McKesson entered into a Settlement and Release Agreement and
Administrative Memorandum of Agreement ("2008 MOA") with DEA. See Appendix 8 .
3.
McKesson's Aurora, Colorado, distribution facility ("McKesson Aurora"), located at
14500 East 39th Ave., Aurora, Colorado 80011, is registered with DEA as a distributor of
Schedule Il-V controlled substances pursuant to DEA Certificate of Registration PM0018425.
On March I 2, 2013, DEA executed an Administrative lnspection Warrant ("AIW") at
4.
McKesson Aurora.
5.
Between March 20 I 3 and the present, DEA executed one (1) additional AlW and served
numerous administrative subpoenas and conducted a number of cyclic inspections at various
McKesson US Pharmaceutical distribution centers nationwide including McKesson's
Washington Court House, Ohio, distribution center ("McKesson WCH"), DEA Certificate of
Registration RM0220688, located at 3000 Kenskill Avenue, Washington Court House, Ohio
43160; McKesson's Livonia, Michigan, distribution center ("McKesson Livonia"), DEA
Certificate of Registration 0030849, located at 38220 Plymouth Road, Livonia, Michigan 48150;
McKesson's Lakeland, Florida, distribution center ("McKesson Lakeland"), DEA Certificate of
Registration PM0000771, located at 1515 Kendrick Lane, Lakeland, Florida 33805; McKesson's
Methuen distribution center ("McKesson Methuen"), DEA Certificate of Registration
PM0020850, located at 9 Aegean Drive, Methuen, Massachusetts 01844; McKesson's Chicago
distribution center ("McKesson Chicagoland"), DEA Certificate of Registration RM0380484,
located at 1955 McKesson Street, Suite l OI, Aurora, Illinois 60502; McKesson's Delran, New
Jersey, distribution center ("McKesson Delran"), DEA Certificate of Registration RMO 173055,
located at 400 Delran Parkway, Delran, New Jersey 08075; McKesson 's Lacrosse, Wisconsin
(00284097}

distribution center, ("McKesson Lacrosse"), DEA Certificate of Registration RM0220537,
locnted at 3003 Airport Road, Lacrosse, Wisconsin 54603; McKesson's La Vista, Nebraska,
distribution center ("McKesson La Vista"), DEA Certificate of Registration PM0038693, located
at 7009 South 108th Street, La Vista, Nebraska 68128; McKesson's Ruther Glen, Virginia,
distribution center ("McKesson Ruther Glen"), DEA Certificate of Registration RM0424363,
located at 10504 McKesson Drive, Ruther Glen, Virginia 22546; and McKesson's West
Sacramento, California, distribution center ("McKesson West Sacramento"), DEA Certificate of
Registration PM002 I 535, located at 3775 Seaport Boulevard, West Sacramento, California
95691 .

6.
On or about August 13, 2014, McKesson received a letter from the U.S. Attorney for the
District of Colorado (the "August 13, 20 I 4 Letter") setting forth allegations that McKesson
failed to "maintain[] ... effective controls against diversion of particular controlled substances,"
21 U.S.C. § 823(b)(l), and failed to "design and operate a system to disclose to the registrant
suspicious orders of controlled substances," 21 C.F.R. § 130 l .74(b). This letter described certain
civil penalties that the U.S. Attorney for the District of Colorado could seek in Colorado and
elsewhere in connection with that alleged conduct.
On or about November 14, 2014, McKesson received a letter (dated November 4, 2014)
from the DEA Office of Chief Counsel, Diversion Regulatory and Litigation Section, stating
that DEA was separately pursuing administrative action against McKesson Aurora for the
conduct outlined in the August 13, 2014 Letter. DEA also stated that the allegations regarding
McKesson's failure to "maintain[] . .. effective controls against diversion of particular
controlled substances," 21 U.S.C. § 823(b)(l), and failure to "design and operate a system to
disclose to the registrant suspicious orders of controlled substances," 21 C.F.R. § I 301. 74(b)
was national in scope, and that DEA was also pursuing administrative investigations of such
alleged failures at McKesson WCI-I, McKesson Livonia, McKesson Lakeland, McKesson
Methuen, McKesson Chicagoland, McKesson Delran, McKesson LaCrosse, McKesson La
Vista, McKesson Ruther Glen, and McKesson West Sacramento.
7.

8.
As of the date of this Agreement, DEA has not issued Orders to Show Cause ("OTSCs")
against any of McKesson's DEA-registered distribution centers.

STIPULATION AND AGREEMENT
ln lieu of commencing and pursuing administrative litigation against the DEA
registrations of an unknown number of McKesson's distribution centers, McKesson and DEA
agree as follows:
l. General

l.
Intention of Parties to Effect Settlement. In order to avoid the uncertainty and expense of
litigation, and in funherance of the Parties' belief that a settlement is in the public interest, the
Panies desire to settle and resolve, and hereby do settle and resolve, the administrative matters
within DEA 's enforcement authority as those matters relate to the conduct described further

2

below. The Parties further believe that the terms and conditions of this senlement as set forth
below represent a complete resolution of this matter.
2.
Acceptance of Responsibility. On or about September 27, 2006, February 7, 2007 and
December 27, 2007, DEA's Deputy Assistant Administrator, Office of Diversion Control, sent
letters to every entity in the United States that was registered with DEA to manufacture or
distribute controlled substances, including McKesson (the "DEA Letters"). The DEA Letters
contained, among other things, guidance for the identification and reporting of suspicious orders
to DEA, as required by 21 C.F.R. § 130 I. 74(b). McKesson acknowledges that, at various times
during the period from January l, 2009 up through and including the Effective Date of this
Agreement (the "Covered Time Period"), it did not identify or report to DEA certain orders
placed by certain pharmacies which should have been detected by McKesson as suspicious based
on the guidance contained in the DEA Letters about the requirements set forth in 21 C.F.R. §
1301.74(b) and 21 U.S.C. § 842(a)(5). McKesson has taken steps to prevent such conduct from
occurring in the future, including the measures delineated in the Compliance Addendum.
On or about May 2, 2008 , DEA and McKesson entered into an Administrative
Memorandum of Agreement (the ''2008 MOA''). The 2008 MOA provided among other things,
that McKesson maintain a compliance program designed to detect and prevent the diversion of
controlled substances, inform DEA of suspicious orders as required by 21 C.F.R. § 1301.74(b),
and follow procedures established by its Controlled Substance Monitoring Program ("CSMP").
McKesson acknowledges that, at various times during the Covered Time Period, it did not
identify or report to DEA certain orders placed by certain pharmacies, which should have been
detected by McKesson as suspicious, in a manner fully consistent with the requirements set forth
in the 2008 MOA. McKesson has taken steps to prevent such conduct from occurring in the
future, including the measures delineated in the Compliance Addendum.
3.
Covered Conduct. For purposes of this Agreement, "Covered Conduct" shall mean the
following conduct alleged by the Government for the Covered Time Period:
a. McKesson failed to maintain effective controls against diversion of particu,lar
controlled substances into other than legitimate medical, scientific and industrial
channels by sales to certain of its customers in violation of the CSA and the
CSA's implementing regulations, 21 C.F.R. Part 1300 et seq., at the McKesson
Distribution Centers, including the following:
Aurora, Colorado;
Aurora, Illinois;
Delran, New Jersey;
LaCrosse, Wisconsin;
Lakeland, Florida;
Landover, Maryland;
La Vista, Nebraska;
Livonia, Michigan;
Methuen, Massachusetts;
Santa Fe Springs, California;
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Washington Courthouse, Ohio; and
West Sacramento, California.
b. ln 2008, McKesson entered into a Settlement Agreement with the Department of
Justice and a Memorandum of Agreement with DEA (collectively referred to
herein as the "2008 Agreements") related to, among other things, McKesson's
failure to report suspicious orders of controlled substances to DEA when
discovered, as required by and in violation of21 C.F.R. § 1301.74(b) and 21
U.S.C. § 842(a)(5). As a result of the 2008 Agreements, McKesson developed a
Controlled Substance Monitoring Program ("CSMP"), in which McKesson
recognized that it had a duty to monitor its sales of all controlled substances and
report suspicious orders to DEA McKesson failed to properly monitor its sales
of controlled substances and/or report suspicious orders to DEA, in accordance
with McKesson's obligations under the 2008 Agreements, the Act, and 21 C.F.R.
§ 130l.74(b);
c. McKesson failed to follow the procedures and policies set forth in the McKesson
CSMP to detect and disclose suspicious orders of controlled substances. Among
other things, McKesson failed to conduct adequate due diligence of its customers,
failed to keep complete and accurate records in the CSMP files maintained for
many of its customers, and bypassed suspicious order reporting procedures set
forth in the McKesson CSMP;
d. In addition, McKesson failed to inform the DEA Field Division Offices and/or
DEA Headquarters of certain suspicious orders of controlled substances made by
its customers during the relevant time period, including orders of unusual size,
orders deviating substantially from normal patterns, and orders of unusual
frequency, as required by and in violation of21 C.F.R. § 1301.74(b), 21 U.S.C.
§ 842(a)(5), and the 2008 Agreements;
e. McKesson failed to report suspicious orders for certain controlled substances in
accordance with the standards identified and outlined in the DEA Letters; and

f.

The McKesson Distribution Centers distributed controlled substances to
pharmacies even though those McKesson Distribution Centers should have
known that the pharmacists practicing within those pharmacies had fai led to fulfill
their corresponding responsibility to ensure that controlled substances were
dispensed pursuant to prescriptions issued for legitimate medical purposes by
practitioners acting in the usual course of their professional practice, as required
by 21 C.F.R § 1306.04(a).

4.
Effect of 2008 MOA. To the extent that there are obligations contained in the 2008
MOA that survived the expiration of the stated term of the 2008 MOA, those te1ms are
superseded by the obligations contained in this Agreement.
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5.
Term of Agreement. The obligations contained in this Agreement shall remain in full
force and effect for a period of five (5) years from the Effective Date ofthis Agreement unless
DEA agrees in writing to an earlier termination.
IL Terms and Conditions

L

Obligations of McKesson.

a. McKesson agrees to maintain a compliance program intended to detect and
prevent diversion of controlled substances as required under the CSA and
applicable implementing regulations. McKesson acknowledges and agrees that
the obligations undertaken in this Agreement and the Compliance Addendum are
designed, in part, to meet its obligations under the CSA and its implementing
regulations.
b. Beginning on the first full calendar month <\fter the Effective Date, McKesson
shall provide DEA Headquarters with an unedited file of all transactions of non
ARCOS reportable controlled substances, This information will be in the format
that Automation of Reports and Consolidated Orders System ("ARCOS") data is
submitted to DEA, and will be uploaded to the following web address:
https://www.deadiversion.usdoj.gov/deareports/. The files shall be due by the
15th of each calendar month for the previous calendar month's report. This
requirement does not supplant the requirement to report ARCOS data in the time
and manner required by DEA regulations. The Parties agree that the report does
not otherwise constitute the basis for McKesson's compliance with recordkeeping
and repoiting requirements under the CSA or applicable jmplementing
regulations. The Parties agree that such report is not required under the CSA or
its implementing regulations and that the accuracy of the report or the failure to
file such a report is not a basis for a violation of 21 U.S.C. § 842(a)(5).

c. ln satisfacrion of its obligation under the CSA's implementing regulations and as
agreed to pursuant to this Agreement for each McKesson distribution center
registrant to "infonu. the Field Division Office of the Administration in [its} area
of suspicious orders," 2 l C.F.R. § 1301.74(6), McKesson shall transmit
Suspicious Order Reports to DEA Headquarters at the end of each business day.
McKesson shall submit the daily Suspicious Order Reports in the format that
ARCOS data is submitted to DEA, and the reports will be uploaded to the
following web address: https://www.deadiversion.usdoj.gov/deareports/. This
obligation will continue during the term of this Agreement w1less and until DEA
ad_vises McKesson otherwise in writing.
d. McKesson agrees that its authority to distribute all controlled substances from its
McKesson Aurora distribution center, DEA Certificate ofRegistration
PMOO l 8425, will be suspended for a period of three (3) years commencing from
the Effective Date of this Agreement (the ''Aurora Suspension Period"). This
suspension shall not apply ro or limjt McKesson's authority to distribute, or
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operations involving, List T Chemical products at or from the Aurora distribution
center, which are authorized under the DEA registration number PM00 18425.
e. McKesson agrees that its authority to distribute all controlled substances from its
McKesson Uvonia distribution center, DEA Certificate of Registration
PM0030849, will be suspended for a period of two (2) years commencing from
the Effective Date of this Agreement, except for orders placed by Permitted
Registrants ("the Livonia Suspension Period"). 1 This suspension shall not apply
to or limit McKesson's authority to distribute, or operations involving, List I
Chemical products al or from the Livonia distribution center, which are
authorized under the DEA registration number PM0030849. McKesson agrees
that during th.is period of suspension, on the I 5th ofthe month following the
applicable calendar quarter, il will deliver to DEA, Detroit Field Division,
Diversion Regulatory Unit, 431 Howard Street, Detroit, Michigan 48226,
a compact disc containing an excel spreadsheet, in a readable format, of all
distributions of controlled substances aggregated by drng code from its McKesson
Livonia distribution center, Certification of Registration PM0030849, for each
previous quarter. McKesson shall notify the Detroit Field Office by email if there
are no sales for the applicable period. Within thirty (30) days of the Effective
Date, DEA will provide the e-mail address to which McKesson will report to
DEA if there are no sales for the applicable period. The data that comprises this
spreadsheet shall be taken directly from McKesson's sales data and shall be sorted
by the DEA Certification of Registration of the purchaser of the controlled
substance.

f.

McKesson agrees that its authority to distribute all controlled substances from its
McKesson WCH distribution center, DEA Certificate of Registration
RM0220688, will be suspended for a period of two (2) years commencing thirty
(30) days from the date upon which the DEA Certificate of Registration for the
McKesson Livonia distribution center is reinstated, except for orders placed by
Permitted Registrants (the "WCH Suspension Period"). In the event the
McKesson Livonia distribution center is not reinstated within one hundred and
eighty ( 180) days of completion of the Livonia Suspension Period due to
McKesson (i) failing to cure a compliance requirement as identified by DEA in its
thirty (30) day advance notice letter described in Section II.2., or (ii) electing to
permanently terminate the Livonia registration, the WCH Suspension Period will
commence no later than two (2) years and one hundred eighty (180) days from
the Effective Date of this Agreement. The McKesson WCH distribution center
suspension shall not apply to or limit McKesson's authority to distribute, or
operations involving, List I Chemical products at or from the WCH distribution
center, which are authorized under the DEA registration number RM0220688.
McKesson agrees that during this period of suspension, on the 15th of the month
following the applicable calendar quarter, it will deliver to DEA, Detroit Field

1
For purposes of this agreement ''Permitted Registrants'' shall include registrants identified in Appendix C.
McKesson shall include updates to the Permitted Registrants in the quancrly reports provided to DEA local oflices
under 11. I e-g.
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Division, Diversion Regulatory Unit, 431 Howard Street, Detroit, Michigan
48226, a compact disc containing an excel spreadsheet, in a readable format, of all
distributions of controlled substances aggregated by drug code from its McKesson
WCH distribution center, Certification of Registration RM0220688, for each
previous quarter. McKesson shall notify the Detroit Field Office by email ifthere
are no sales for the applicable period. Within thirty (30) days of the Effective
Date, DEA will provide the e-mail address to which McKesson will report to
DEA ifthere are no sales for the applicable period . The data that comprises this
spreadsheet shall be taken directly from McKesson's sales data and shall be sorted
by the DEA Certification of Registration of the purchaser of the controlled
substance.
g. McKesson agrees that its authority to distribute controlled substances containing
the drug code for Schedule II hydromorphone products, that is, DEA drug code
9150, from its McKesson Lakeland distribution center, DEA Certificate of
Registration PM0000771, will be suspended for a period of one (1) year
commencing from the Effective Date ofthe Agreement, except for orders placed
by Pennitted Registrants (the "Lakeland Suspension Period"), McKesson agrees
that during this period of suspension, on the 15th of the month following the
applicable calendar quarter, it will deliver to DEA, Miami Field Division,
Diversion Regulatory Unit, 2100 North Commerce Parkway, Weston, Florida
33326, a compact disc containing an excel spreadsheet, in a readable format, of all
distributions of hydromorphone (drug code 9150) from its McKesson Lakeland
distribution center, Certification of Registration PM000077 l, for each previous
quarter. McKesson shall notify the Miami Field Office by email if there are no
sales for the applicable period, Within thirty (30) days of the Effective Date,
DEA will provide the e-mail address to which McKesson will report to DEA if
there are no sales for the applicable period. The data that comprises this
spreadsheet shall be taken directly from McKesson's sales data and shall be sorted
by the DEA Certification of Registration of the purchaser of the hydromorphone.
h. McKesson agrees to reasonably cooperate with DEA, United States Attorneys'
Offices, and any other Federal, state, or local law enforcement agency
investigating or prosecuting McKesson's customers for alleged violations or
activities related to the Covered Conduct unless such matters would affect the
rights or obligations of McKesson in regard to any pending or threatened
litigation. Such cooperation shall include, but is not limited to, producing records
and making employees available for interviews by DEA or other law enforcement
authorities, subject to appropriate requests, e.g., administrative subpoena.
However, nothing in this paragraph shall be construed as a waiver by McKesson
or its employees of any constitutional rights or rights that the company would
have as a party to a matter involving pending or threatened litigation with the
govemment or a third party, including without limitation attorney-client or
attorney work product privileges.
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1.

J.

Pursuant to the 2017 Settlement Agreement and Release, McKesson agrees to a
settlement payment to the United States of America in the amount of
$150,000,000.00 in settlement of claims or potential claims made by the United
States of America for failing to report suspicious orders of controlled substances.
McKesson agrees to execute the 2017 Settlement Agreement and Release
simultaneously with the execution of this Agreement and to execute any other
documents necessary to fully and finally senle all claims of the United States of
America under this subparagraph, and to fully pay said settlement payment
penalties within five (5) days ofthe Effective Date of this Agreement.
Any material breach by any McKesson facility of subsections Il.1.b-g of this
Agreement by McKesson after the Effective Date of this Agreement, where
McKesson has not cured such breach as may be allowed under relevant law,
regulation, this Agreement and Compliance Addendum may be a basis upon
which DEA takes administrative action seeking the revocation and/or the
suspension of the DEA Ccrti ficates of Registration of any of McKesson's
distribution centers. However, nothing in this Agreement or the Compliance
Addendum shall be deemed a waiver of McKesson's Due Process rights.

k. In any case where a supplier inadvertently ships controlled substances to any
McKesson suspended facility, McKesson shall promptly return the product to the
supplier. McKesson shall maintain a record of such receipt and return for two (2)
years.
I.

In any case where a customer inadvertently returns controlled substances to any
McKesson suspended facility, McKesson shall promptly send the product to
another McKesson DC for processing. McKesson shall maintain a record of such
receipt and transfer for two (2) years.

m. Any McKesson suspended facility receiving a DEA Order Form 222 shall
promptly endorse such Order Form to another, non-suspended McKesson facility
pursuant to 21 C.F.R. § 1305.14. McKesson shall maintain a record of any
endorsement and transfer of an order form for two (2) years.
n. In the event that any controlled substance maintained at a suspended McKesson
facility is no longer required to be stocked or sold to a Permitted Registrant, the
suspended McKesson facility may transfer such controlled substance to another
non-suspended McKesson facility. Such transaction shall be reflected in the
quarterly transaction report submitted to the appropriate local DEA field office as
described in subsection IL 1.e-g of this Agreement.
2.

Obligations of DEA.
a. DEA does not endorse or approve of any specific system or approach
implemented by DEA registrants to satisfy their obligations under 21 C.F.R.
§ 1301.74(b) or 21 U.S.C. § 823(b)(l). DEA has taken no action during the
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negotiation of this Agreement, and is taking no action by entering into this
Agreement, that can be interpreted to be directly or indirectly endorsing or
approving the system that McKesson is currently utilizing to meet its obligations
under the CSA and the implementing regulations. Going forward, DEA's actions
in fulfilling the oversight of McKesson under this Agreement, including the
receipt of information and/or its parlicipation in meetings with McKesson
representatives, shall not be construed or interpreted to be directly or indirectly
endorsing or approving the system that McKesson is utilizing to meet its
obligations under the CSA and the implementing regulations.
b. DEA agrees to accept at DEA Headquarters the information regarding suspicious
orders as described in subsection II. l .c. of this Agreement.
c. In the event that DEA discovers information about conduct during the Covered
Time Period that may warrant administrative action, and which is not otherwise
included under the Covered Conduct, DEA shall favorably consider McKesson's
entry into this Agreement, the Compliance Addendum, and the civil penalties paid
pursuant to the Settlement Agreement and Release; all actions taken by
McKesson pursuant to this Agreement and Compliance Addendum; any remedial
actions taken by McKesson to address the alleged or perceived violative conduct;
and the compliance history of McKesson at the particular facility, and at other
McKesson facilities.
d. Unless DEA determines that McKesson is in noncompliance with the terrns of this
Agreement, after providing McKesson with prior written notice of alleged
noncompliance with the terms of this Agreement and providing McKesson with at
least thi11y (30) days to respond to any such notice, DEA agrees that it will lift the
suspension of McKesson Aurora's distribution center, DEA Certificate of
Registration PM0018425, and, if needed, grant any requisite registration renewal,
no later than the end of Lhe Aurora Suspension Period.
e. Unless DEA determines that McKesson is in noncompliance with the terms of this
Agreement, after providing McKesson with prior written notice of alleged
noncompliance with the terms of this Agreement and providing McKesson with at
least thirty (30) days to respond to any such notice, DEA agrees that it will lift the
suspension of McKesson Livonia distribution center, DEA Certificate of
Registration PM0030849, and, if needed, grant any requisite registration renewal,
no later than the end of the Livonia Suspension Period.

f.

Unless DEA determines that McKesson is in noncompliance with the terms of this
Agreement, after providing McKesson with prior written notice of alleged
noncompliance with the terms of this Agreement and providing McKesson with at
least thirty (30) days to respond to any such notice, DEA agrees that it will lift the
suspension of McKesson WCH distribution center, DEA Certificate of
Registration RM0220688, and, if needed, grant any requisite registration renewal,
no later than the end of the WCH Suspension Period.
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g. Unless DEA determines that McKesson is in noncompliance with the terms of this
Agreement, after providing McKesson with prior written notice of alleged
noncompliance with the terms of this Agreement and providing McKesson with at
least thirty (30) days to respond to any such notice, DEA agrees that it will
reinstate the ability ofthe McKesson Lakeland distribution center, DEA
Certificate of Registration PM0000771, to distribute the controlled substances
containing the drug code for Schedule II hydromorphone products, that is, DEA
drug code 9 I 50, no later than the end of the Lakeland Suspension Period.
Release by DEA. In consideration of the fulfillment of the obligations of McKesson
under this Agreement, DEA agrees to:

3.

a. Fully and finally release McKesson, together with its subsidiary entities,
distribution facilities, and registrants, along with its officers, directors, employees,
successors, and assigns (collectively, the "Released Parties") from any and all
administrative claims within DEA's enforcement authority under 21 U.S.C.
§§ 823 & 824 related to the Covered Conduct; and
b. Refrain from filing or taking any administrative actions against the Released
Parties within DEA's enforcement authority under 21 U.S.C. §§ 823 & 824, based
on the Covered Conduct only to extent that such conduct was or could have been
discovered by DEA through the exercise of due diligence through the examination
of open investigations and inspections in existence as ofthe Effective Date of this
Agreement, and the review of the reports and records McKesson submitted to
DEA prior to the Effective Date of this Agreement. This release applies only to
administrative actions brought before or by DEA.
Notwithstanding the releases by DEA contained in this Paragraph, DEA reserves the right
to seek to admit evidence of the Covered Conduct for proper evidentiary purposes in any other
administrative proceeding against the Released Parties for non-Covered Conduct. Further,
nothing in lhis Paragraph shall prohibit or limit any other agency within the Department of
Justice, any State attorney general, or any other law enforcement, administrative, or regulatory
agency of the United States or any State thereof, from initiating administrative, civil, or criminal
proceedings with respect to the Covered Conduct. DEA shall, as obligated in fulfilling its
statutory duties, assist and cooperate with any agency that initiates an investigation, action, or
proceeding involving the Covered Conduct. At McKesson's request, DEA agrees to disclose the
terms of this Agreement to any other agency and will represent, assuming McKesson is in
compliance with this Agreement, that the allegations raised by DEA, as defined in the Covered
Conduct, have been adequately addressed. This release is applicable only to the Released Parties
and is not applicable in any manner to any other individual, partnership, corporation, or entity.
4.
Release by McKesson. McKesson fully and finally releases the United States of
America, its agencies, employees, servants, and agents from any claims (including attorney's
fees, costs, and expenses of every kind and however denominated) which McKesson has
asserted, could have asserted, or may assert in the future against the United States of America, its
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agencies, employees, servants, and agents, related to the Covered Conduct and the United States'
investigation and prosecution thereof.
5.
Reservation of Claims. Notwithstanding any term of this Agreement, specifically
reserved and excluded from the scope and terms of this Agreement as to any entity or person
(including McKesson) are the following:

a. Any potential criminal liability;
b. Any civil, criminal or administrative liability arising under Title 26, U.S . Code
(Internal Revenue Code);
c. Any administrative liability to the United States other than administrative claims
released in Paragraph 11.3.a. and b.
d. Any civil liability to the United States, other than the civil claims released in the
20 17 Settlement Agreement and Release; or
e. Any liability based upon any obligation created by or arising under this
Agreement.

III. Miscellaneous
1.
Binding on Successors. This Agreement is binding on McKesson, and its respective
successors, heirs, transferees, and assigns.
2.
Costs. Each Party to this Agreement shall bear its own legal and other costs incurred in
connection with this matter, including the preparation and performance of this Agreement.
3.
No Additional Releases. This Agreement is intended to be for the benefit ofthe Parties
and the Released Parties only, and by this instrument the Parties do not release any claims
against any other person or entity other than the Released Parties.

4.
Effect of Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the complete agreement between the
Parties. All material representations, understandings, and promises of the Parties are contained
in this Agreement, and each of the parties expressly agrees and acknowledges that, other than
those statements expressly set forth in this Agreement, it is not relying on any statement, whether
oral or written, of any person or entity with respect to its entry into this Agreement or to the
consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. Any modifications to this
Agreement shall be set forth in writing and signed by all Parties. McKesson represents that this
Agreement is entered into with advice of counsel and knowledge of the events described herein.
McKesson further represents that this Agreement is voluntarily entered into in order to avoid
litigation, without any degree of duress or compulsion.
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5.
Execution of Agreement. Thfs Agreement shall become effective (i.e., final and binding)
on the date of signing by the last signatory (the "Effective Date"). The government agrees to
notify McKesson immediately when the final signatory has executed this Agreement.
6,
Notices. All communications and notices pursuant to this Agreement shall be made in
writing to the following individuals, which notice information may be altered from time to time
by either Party by written notification:
a. For DEA or DOJ:

Drug Enforcement Administration, Diversion Control Division, 8701 Morrissette
Drive, Springfield, Virginia 22152;
Drug Enforcement Administration, Office of Chief Counsel, Diversion and
Regulatory Litigation Section, 8701 Morrissette Drive, Springfield, Virginia
22152; and

U.S. Department of Justice, Criminal Division, Narcotic and Dangerous Drug
Section, 145 N St. NE (2 Constitution Square), 2nd Floor, East Wing, Washington,
D.C. 20530
b. For McKesson:

Senior Vice President, US Pharmaceutical, Regulatory Affairs and Compliance
McKesson Corporation
One Post Street, 36th Floor
San Francisco, CA 94104
with copies to:
Vice President, U.S. Pharmaceutical, Regulatory Affairs &
Compliance
McKesson Corporation
6535 State Highway 161
lrving, TX 75039-2402
Assistant General Counsel, US Pharmaceutical
McKesson Corporation
One Post Street, 361h Floor
San Francisco, CA 94104
7.
Disclosure. McKesson and DEA may each disclose the existence of this Agreement and
rnformation about this Agreement to the public except for information designated as. confidential.
8,
Confidentiality and Designation of Information. McKesson and DEA agree that all
transaction reports submitted to DEA contain information this is commercial or financial and
privileged or confidential, and therefore exempt from disclosure under the Freedom of
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Information Act ("FOTA"), 5 U.S.C. § 552. Such information may be exempt from disclosure
under the Freedom of Information Act and any other state or federal law or regulation protecting
such information from public disclosure and, upon receipt of a request to release such, DEA
agrees to provide McKesson reasonable opportw1ity to respond to any such requests.
Execution in Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of
which constitutes an original, and all of which shall constitute one and the same agreement.
Copies or facsimi les of signatures shall constitute acceptable, binding signatures for purposes of
this Agreement.

9.

l 0.
Authorizations. The individuals signing this Agreement on behalf of McKesson
represent and warrant that they are authorized by McKesson to execute this Agreement. T b.e
individuals signing this Agreement on behalf of DEA represent and warrant that they are signing
this Agreement in their official capacities and that they are authorized by DEA to execute this
Agreement.
I l.
Choice of Law and Venue. This Settlement Agreement and Release shall be construed in
accordance with the laws of the United States, and either Party may seek judicial enforcement o f
lhis Agreement upon a material breach by the other Party. The Parties agree that the jurisdiction
and venue for any dispute arising between and among the Parties to this Agreement shall be any
federa.l court of competent jurisdiction. This provision, however, shall not be construed as a
waiver of the jurisdictional provisions of the CSA, as amended.

[Signature page to follow]

1.3

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have duly executed this Administrative
Memorandum ofAgl'cement.

On Bc11alf of McKesson Corporation:

On Behalf of the United States Department
of Justice, Drug Enforcement

l,c'J:d
Mark Walchirk
President, US Pharmaceutical
McKesson Coq,oration
Datecl:

inlstr•tlon:

(J

euberg
Acting Administrator
Drug Euforceme11t Administration

\ -~--ll
Louis J. Milion
Assistant Administrator, Divernion Control
Division
Drng Enforcement Administration

Dated: I-

11---1 /

